AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

THE TOWN OF OLD ORCHARD BEACH

8

LOCAL 2247 INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FIREFIGHTERS AFL-CIO-CLC

JULY 1, 2023-JUNE 30, 2026

Table of Contents

ARTICLE 1 - PREAMBLE	
ARTICLE 2- RECOGNITION	5
ARTICLE 3 - RELATIONSHIP	5
ARTICLE 4 - DUES DEDUCTION	6
ARTICLE 5 - SENIORITY	6
ARTICLE 6 - DUTIES	
ARTICLE 7 LATERAL TRANSFER AGREEMENT	
ARTICLE 8- SHIFT SUBSTITUTIONS AND SWAPS	
ARTICLE 9 - HOLIDAYS	
ARTICLE 10 - VACATIONS	9
ARTICLE 11 - SICK LEAVE	
ARTICLE 12 - PERSONAL LEAVE TIME	13
ARTICLE 13 - BEREAVEMENT LEAVES	13
ARTICLE 14 - WORKER'S COMPENSATION	
ARTICLE 15 - INSURANCE	
ARTICLE 16 - CLOTHING ALLOWANCE	
ARTICLE 17 - RETIREMENT	
ARTICLE 18 - PAY SCALE	17
ARTICLE 19 - EMERGENCY CALL BACK TIME	
ARTICLE 20- HOURS OF WORK	
ARTICLE 21 - ABSENTEEISM	
ARTICLE 22 - VACANCIES AND PROMOTIONS	20
ARTICLE 23 - DETAILS TO OTHER TOWN DEPARTMENTS OR UTILITY COMPANIES	
ARTICLE 24 - OPERATING FIRE FIGHTING APPARATUS	
ARTICLE 25 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	
ARTICLE 26 - UNION BULLETIN BUSINESS	
ARTICLE 27 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS AND DEPARTMENTAL RULES	
ARTICLE 28- SCHOOLING AND TRAINING	
ARTICLE 29 - GENERAL PROVISIONS	
ARTICLE 30 - SAVINGS CLAUSE	
ARTICLE 31 - HEALTH AND SAFETY	
ARTICLE 32 - PHYSICAL EXAMINATIONS	
ARTICLE 33 - PHYSICAL FITNESS REQUIREMENT	
ARTICLE 34 - FIRE INSPECTOR POSITION SIDE BAR	
ARTICLE 35- TERM OF AGREEMENT	
APPENDIX A - CONTRACT PERIOD 07/01/2020-06/30/2021 Error! Bookmark not defi	

APPENDIX B - CONTRACT PERIOD 07/01/2021-06/30/2022 Error! Bookmark no	t defined.
APPENDIX C - CONTRACT PERIOD 07/01/2022-06/30/2023 Error! Bookmark no	t defined.
APPENDIX D-OVERTIME DISTRIBUTION	7:

This Agreement is made and entered into this 1st day of July, 2023 by and between the Town of Old Orchard Beach, hereinafter referred to as "Town" and Local 2247, International Association of Fire Fighters, AFL-CIO-CLC, hereinafter referred to as "Local Union".

ARTICLE 1 - PREAMBLE

Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 9-A Revised statutes of Maine, Title 26, as enacted by the Maine Legislature in 1969, entitled "An Act Establishing the Municipal Public Employees Labor Relations Law", and as amended, this Agreement is made and entered into by and between the Town of Old Orchard Beach, Maine, and Local 2247 of the International Association of Fire Fighters.

In order to increase general efficiency in the Town and to promote the morale, equal rights, well-being and security of its employees, the Town of Old Orchard Beach, and Local 2247, herein bind themselves in mutual agreement as follows:

ARTICLE 2- RECOGNITION

The Town recognizes the Local Union as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for all uniformed full-time employees, including the Captains and Lieutenants of the Old Orchard Beach Fire Department, personnel performing principally Fire, Rescue and EMS operations, as well as the Office Manager, with exception of the Fire Chief and career Deputy Chief, for the purpose of collective bargaining and entering into agreements relative to wages, hours and working conditions.

It is recognized that the Fire Chief is the head of the Old Orchard Beach Fire Department, and that all members in the Department shall be responsible to the Fire Chief in accordance with the provisions of the Town Charter.

Definitions:

- 1. "Local Union" shall mean Local 2247, International Association of Fire Fighters.
- "The Town" shall mean the Town of Old Orchard Beach, the Town Manager; or a designated representative who represents the Town of Old Orchard Beach for all agreements finalized between said representative and the Union, Local2247.
- 3. "The Fire Chief' shall mean the head of the Fire/Rescue Department.
- 4. "Career Deputy Chief' shall mean the 2nd in command of the Fire/Rescue Department.
- 5. "Rescue" shall mean emergency medical service, water/ice extrications, search and retrieval of victims during firefighting operations both above and below grade.
- 6. "Fire Fighter" shall mean all full-time regular uniformed members, except the Fire Chief, Career Deputy Fire Chief, and Office Manager.

ARTICLE 3 - RELATIONSHIP

The Local Union shall be ever mindful of its "No Strike" obligation and the individual

members of the Local Union are to regard themselves as Municipal Fire Fighters, and as such they are to be governed by the highest ideals of honor and integrity. The Town agrees that no Fire Fighter shall in any manner be discriminated against or restrained or influenced on account of membership in Local 2247 or by reason of his/her holding office therein.

ARTICLE 4 - DUES DEDUCTION

The Town shall deduct union dues weekly from the first pay period upon receipt of signed authorization from members (a copy of which is to be retained by the Town) and a certified statement from the Treasurer of the Local Union as to the amount for dues. All such forms shall be supplied by the Union and be satisfactory to the Town. The Town shall forward all such dues so collected to the Treasurer of the Local Union each month. The Union shall indemnify and save the Town harmless against all claims and suits which may arise by reason of any action taken in making deductions of said dues and remitting the same to the Union pursuant to this Article.

The Town shall maintain regular deductions of dues of each employee, unless notified otherwise either by the Local Union or by the individual employee.

ARTICLE 5 - SENIORITY

The Town shall establish a seniority list for firefighters, and it shall be brought up to date on January first (1st) of each year. Said list shall be made available to the Union upon request. Any objection to the seniority list as posted must be reported to the Fire Department and the Local Union within ten (10) days from the date posted, or it shall stand accepted. For the purpose of this Article, "Seniority" shall mean length of service from date of hire as a Fire Fighter.

In the event that more than one employee is hired the same day, they shall draw lots for seniority.

ARTICLE 6 - DUTIES

The duties of the uniformed members of the Old Orchard Beach Fire Department shall be the prevention, control and extinguishment of fires, performing all emergency medical services for the community, and the saving of lives. They shall perform minor maintenance duties such as cleaning, sweeping, and minor repairs in the building and on the grounds, and minor maintenance on the equipment and apparatus.

Firefighters hired after July 1, 1985, shall as a condition of employment or within one (1) year of employment possess a valid State of Maine Emergency Medical Technician license.

All firefighters hired after July 1, 1985 must also maintain EMT-Basic certification throughout their tenure.

All firefighters hired after July 1, 1995 must have or obtain a State of Maine Certificate for

Firefighter I within one year of hire.

After January 2000, all future firefighter hires shall be at Paramedic level or licensed Advanced level enrolled in a Paramedic course and shall be required to complete the Paramedic course and maintain a Paramedic License level during their tenure.

Eight (8) firefighter positions, two (2) per shift, not including the Officer in charge, must be a paramedic position in order to provide the highest emergency medical services to the community. Whenever a vacancy occurs among the twenty (20) recognized positions and the vacancy that occurs will cause less than the eight (8) total paramedic positions, the vacancy must be filled with a paramedic. All other job requirements also apply. Any firefighter having a Paramedic, Basic or Advanced License at the time of hire (occurring after July 1, 1995), must always maintain their respective license levels at all times as a condition of hire. Failure to do so is automatic just cause for dismissal.

In time of emergency, the Town may require that unit members of the Fire Department perform work not usually done by the Fire Department so long as such use of Fire Department personnel does not jeopardize the function of the Fire Department and does not involve the lay-off or dismissal of any other Town employee.

Any major maintenance projects on apparatus for the Fire Station may be done on a voluntary basis by the members of Local 2247, subject to a majority vote of the Union members.

Any changes in job description, which involves a change of working conditions, shall be subject to mandatory bargaining by the Union.

If a firefighter is expected to be absent from his/her shift for ninety (90) days or greater, a temporary firefighter can be hired for the length of the employee's absence. The temporary firefighter shall meet all requirements for permanent hire which include the specifics of this Article, have a valid Maine driver's license, pass a new hire physical fitness test, and background investigation. Both the Union and Management shall have the right to modify these requirements upon mutual agreement.

Should the Department hire an individual for a fire fighter position that is in addition to the number of permanent, full-time fire fighter positions authorized by the Town Council, that individual so hired shall possess a Fire Fighter I certification recognized by the Maine Fire Service Institute and shall be able to operate as a licensed EMT-A in the State of Maine at the time of appointment. As a condition of employment, the employee shall be enrolled or shall enroll in the first available EMT-Paramedic course recognized by Maine Emergency Medical Services, and shall become a Maine Emergency Medical Technician licensed to the Paramedic level.

ARTICLE 7 LATERAL TRANSFER AGREEMENT

At the sole discretion of the Town, newly hired fire fighters may be placed up to the level of the 10 year step in the wage scale for qualified candidates.

A qualified candidate is defined as having, at a minimum, a Fire Fighter I certification recognized by the Maine Fire Service Institute, and shall have obtained, or be able to obtain, a State of Maine Emergency Medical Technician license at the Paramedic level.

Advancement in the scale in such circumstances will continue as if the employee had completed the years of service at the place in the wage scale they were placed in at hire. Any employee

hired as a "lateral" entry according to this section shall accrue vacation at a rate that is reflective of the years of service at the placement step on the wage scale. All other seniority and benefit issues shall be based on the actual date of hire, unless otherwise specified within this agreement.

ARTICLE 8- SHIFT SUBSTITUTIONS AND SWAPS

Firefighters shall be permitted to swap shifts with other unit members and/or to find other firefighters that are willing to substitute for them during their scheduled shift provided, however, that:

- 1. Permission to substitute must be obtained from the on Duty Officer in Charge, the Deputy Chief or the Fire Chief.
- 2. The Town shall, in no way, be responsible for financial obligations incurred between the parties substituting or enforcement of arrangements made between substituting parties.
- 3. Permission to substitute shall be requested three (3) calendar days in advance.

ARTICLE 9 - HOLIDAYS

The following holidays shall be paid holidays for all firefighters covered by this agreement:

New Year's Day
Martin Luther King Day
President's Day
Patriot's Day
Easter Sunday
Memorial Day
Juneteenth

Independence Day

Labor Day
Columbus Day
Veteran's Day
Thanksgiving Day
Day after Thanksgiving Day
Christmas Day
Christmas Eve (1/2) day

In addition to the established wage rates, the employer (Town) shall pay a premium of ten (10) hours pay to the firefighters for each holiday recognized and observed during the calendar year.

On Christmas Day, firefighters required to work the entire Christmas Day shall receive a premium of twenty-four (24) hours pay in addition to the established wage rates.

Firefighters shall not be entitled to holiday pay while out on sick leave, unless sick leave is for an extended time under Doctor's care on the recognized date of the Holiday or he/she is on Worker's Compensation.

The following holidays shall be paid holidays for the Office Manager covered by this agreement:

New Year's Day Martin Luther King Day

President's Day Patriot's Day Memorial Day Juneteenth Independence Day Labor Day Columbus Day Veteran's Day Thanksgiving Day Day after Thanksgiving Day Christmas Day Christmas Eve (1/2) day

Observance of the holidays will follow the Town's Personnel Policy.

ARTICLE 10 - VACATIONS

Section 1-Firefighter

Firefighter Vacation

Service Months		Weekly Accrued Amount	Max Limit	
From	То			
0	12	0.923	48	
13	60	1.846	96	
61	120	2.769	144	
121	240	3.69	192	
241 999		4.615	240	

For the purpose of this section, the term "Work Week" shall mean (7) seven continuous, and consecutive calendar days.

Employees may carry no more than the maximum limit plus 96 hours at any time.

Employees who are separated in good standing (as stated in Article 11) from the Fire Department and who have accrued vacation to their credit at the time of separation shall be paid the salary equivalent to the accrued vacation.

All vacation time shall be based upon and scheduled on a calendar year. Notice of weekly vacations must be posted four (4) weeks in advance. Up to (2) weeks of vacation may be chosen day-by-day if each day is chosen no more than (3) weeks in advance.

No more than two (2) Firefighters per shift shall be on vacation at a time during a week unless authorized by the Fire Chief.

All normal weekly advance vacation requests shall be submitted to the Fire Chief by November 30 of the year prior to the taking of the vacation. Vacations shall be scheduled for the initial two (2) weeks by seniority. Requests for additional weeks shall be submitted by January 1st and scheduled by seniority. Any open weeks which occur after January 1, will be taken on a first come, first serve basis regardless of seniority. No vacation time leave shall be granted for the 25th day of December.

Employees who use their vacation time in increments of twenty-four (24) hours shall be charged for twenty-four (24) hours of vacation accrual used. If an employee takes only (1) one twenty-four (24) hour vacation day during their week scheduled, the employee will be assessed with twenty-four (24) hours of vacation time and eighteen (18) regular working hours, equaling forty-two (42) hours for the weekly pay period. Should an employee use two (2) vacation days during their week scheduled, they would assessed forty-eight (48) hours vacation from their accrual and a negative six (6) regular hours would be shown for payroll purposes to attain the forty (42) hour pay period.

Section 2- Office Manager

Office Manager vacation

Service Mo	onths			
From	То	Weekly Accrued Amount	Max Limit	
0	59	2.13		
60	119	2.85	148	
120	999	3.5577	185	

Employees may carry no more than the maximum limit plus 74 hours at any time. Vacation leave accrues on a pro-rata basis each month during the year it is accrued, commencing on the employee's date of employment. Accrued vacation time will be reflected on employees' paycheck stubs. No vacation may be utilized during the first six months of employment.

Exceptions to this schedule may be made pursuant to contract or at the discretion of the Town Manager in exceptional circumstances.

Requests for vacation time must be made on the vacation request forms. Scheduling of vacations shall be done by the employee's immediate supervisor and in accordance with operational needs. In the event a holiday falls within the vacation period, the holiday will not be counted as a vacation day, and the employee will be compensated for the holiday.

Any paid leaves of absence shall not constitute a break in the employment record.

Unused vacation days may accrue from one year to the next with maximum hold over of two weeks. No vacation of more than two (2) weeks duration at one time will be allowed unless approved by the Town Manager.

Accumulated vacation leave, subject to the maximum allowed, shall be paid to an employee upon separation from employment or to the employee's beneficiary upon the employee's death.

ARTICLE 11 - SICK LEAVE

Sick leave earned during an employee's initial probationary period (the first 180 days of employment) will be credited to the employee's sick leave accumulation upon the expiration of the probationary period; however no sick leave may be used during the initial probationary period.

Section 1-Firefighters

Firefighter sick (hired before 7/1/13)

Servi	e Months		Max	
From	From To	Weekly Accrued Amount	Accrual Limit	
0	999	3.692	3120	

Payout would be fifty percent (50%) of accumulated sick hours with a maximum payout of one thousand four hundred and forty (1440) hours, after a minimum of ten (10) years of continuous service and separation is in good standing.

Firefighter sick (hired after 7/1/13)

Service Months			Max
From	То	Weekly Accrued Amount	Accrual Limit
0	999	3.692	1440

Payout would be fifty percent (50%) of accumulated sick hours with a maximum payout of seven hundred and twenty (720) hours, after a minimum service of ten (10) years of continuous service and separation is in good standing.

Separation in good standing means:

- 1. Voluntary resignation of employee who shall provide at least two (2) weeks written notice to Town, and that employee shall work all scheduled shifts in the two (2) week notice period unless excused by the Chief
- 2. Retirement of employee with notice and work requirements stated in #1 above shall be applicable
- 3. Layoff from employment due to reduction in force by Town
- 4. Reasons mutually agreed upon by Union and Town.

Sick leave may be used only for personal illness or physical incapacity of such a degree as to render an employee unable to perform the duties of his/her position. If requested by the Town Manager or Fire Chief, an employee who is out sick for three (3) consecutive working days may be required to furnish a certificate from a physician as to the nature of the illness or incapacity.

For the purpose of this Article, a day of sick leave shall be a twenty-four (24) hour day. If a firefighter is on extended sick leave or Worker's Compensation leave (more than 12 shifts consecutively), he/she may elect to be paid for his/her annual accrued vacation time during the remainder his/her absence.

If an employee completes six (6) months (calculations will be July-December & January-June) continuous service without using any sick leave, that employee shall receive twelve (12) hours regular pay in addition on his/her next scheduled paycheck. Section 2-Office Manager

Office Manager sick

Service N	Months		Max
From	То	Weekly Accrued Amount	Accrual Limit
0	999	1.708	888

Sick leave may be used for personal illness or physical incapacity of such a degree as to render an employee unable to perform the duties of his/her position. Sick leave may also be used to care for immediate family members. If requested by the Town Manager or Fire Chief, an employee who is out sick for three (3) consecutive working days may be required to furnish a certificate from a physician as to the nature of the illness or incapacity.

If an employee completes six (6) months (calculations will be July-December & January-June) continuous service without using any sick leave, that employee shall receive seven (7) hours regular pay in addition on his/her next scheduled paycheck. Payout at the time of separation will follow the Town's Personnel Policy.

Section 3- Extended Leave (non-work-related leave)

An employee who is absent from their employment because of illness or injury, not arising out of their employment, or because they shall have been granted leave of

absence for any other reason, shall retain their status as an employee for a period of twelve (12) months. Their status as an employee may be extended for further periods at the discretion of the Town upon written notice to the Local Union prior to the expiration of said twelve (12) month period. Any extension shall be for a time-specific period, and must be made upon written notice to the Local Union.

Section 4-Family Leave Hours

Firefighters will be allowed 48 hours to be used as Family Leave hours, these hours shall not be carried year to year (Jan-Dec). Firefighter requests shall be made to Fire Chief, Deputy Chief or in his/her absence, the on duty OIC, at least two days before taking such leave, except in the case of emergency. For the purposes of this section, the immediate family is defined as including those living in the household as a family unit, grandparents, parents, brothers, sisters, children, step-children, spouse and domestic partner. Days used under Section 4 shall be subtracted from unused sick leave.

ARTICLE 12 - PERSONAL LEAVE TIME

All personnel covered by this Agreement shall be entitled to the following temporary non-cumulative leaves of absence with full pay:

Section 1-Personal Hours

Firefighter requests shall be made to the Fire Chief, Deputy Chief or in his/her absence the on duty OIC, at least three (3) days before taking such leave except in the case of emergency. Personal hours do not accumulate year to year.

	Personal Hours
Firefighters	48
Office Manager	14

ARTICLE 13 - BEREAVEMENT LEAVES

In the event of a death in the employee's immediate family, employees may be granted a leave of absence with pay of up to four (4) consecutive calendar days. Immediate family is defined as including those living in the household as a family unit, an employee's spouse, domestic partner, parent, child/stepchild, brother, sister, and/or grandparents. In the event of the death of an employee's father-in-law, mother-in-law, brother-in-law, and/or sister-in-law; the employee may be granted up to two (2) days leave of absence.

This leave is intended for use during the days that fall within the family member's time of death and the day after the funeral. This leave may also be used for delayed burials/services with the prior approval of the Fire Chief or Deputy Chief.

ARTICLE 14 - WORKER'S COMPENSATION

The Town of Old Orchard Beach shall provide Worker's Compensation (WC) insurance coverage for all its regular employees as governed and applied in accordance with the applicable State of Maine Worker's Compensation law. Benefits under Worker's Compensation may be provided when an employee has sustained a job-related injury or illness.

All job-related injuries and/or illnesses shall be immediately reported to the employee's supervisor who, with the employee's assistance, shall submit the first report of injury form. Supervisors are responsible for reporting an injury within twenty-four (24) hours of its occurrence, or their knowledge of the occurrence, regardless of the timing of the employee's first written report.

Employees who are eligible to receive Worker's Compensation benefits will receive the percentage of pay covered by Worker's Compensation for the duration of the Workers Compensation coverage period. All WC eligible employees will also be given the option of using their accumulated sick time for the period of WC coverage as an offset to their weekly wages that is not covered by this benefit. Both the WC benefit payout and any sick time used during the period of eligibility will be processed through the Town's payroll system.

In the event that an employee collecting Worker's Compensation is determined by the applicable physician to be available to work light duty assignments, the Fire Chief shall determine if a suitable light duty assignment is available and the schedule that the employee will work. The schedule may be Monday through Friday with hours similar to the administration office, up to forty-two (42) hours per week.

The Town agrees that an employee out on Worker's Compensation for an extended period of time shall be allowed to continue their participation in the Town's health insurance plan for up to eighteen (18) months depending on the individual circumstances of the necessity of their leave. Where an employee has been unable to work for eighteen (18) months, the employee may be terminated from his/her position. Their status as an employee may be extended for further periods at the discretion of the Town upon written notice to the Local Union prior to the expiration of said eighteen (18) month period. Any extension shall be for a time-specific period, and must be made upon written notice to the Local Union.

ARTICLE 15 - INSURANCE

Section 1: Health Insurance

A comprehensive health insurance plan is available to regular full time employees. The Town may offer more than one plan choice to employees. The Town agrees that the MMEHT (Maine Municipal Employees Health Trust) Comprehensive Point of Service (POS C) plan or equivalent will be offered as a choice to full time employees. An employee may only change to another plan during the Open Enrollment period. Employees may change coverage type (single, emp/spouse, etc.) for qualifying events at the time of the qualifying event. Should MMEHT no longer offer the POS C plan, the Town and the Union agree to bargain on a replacement plan.

Premiums will be paid as shown below:

Health Insurance	Health Insurance Town will pay			
Firefighters	80%	20%		
Office Manager	85%	15%		

Eligibility for our group health insurance plan is determined according to the guidelines set forth by the health insurance plan administrator.

Employees who choose not to enroll under our group health insurance plan and who can provide documentation that they have health insurance coverage under a spouse/partner's plan may be eligible to receive cash in-lieu-of this benefit. Employees who are eligible for the in-lieu-of benefit will receive twenty-five percent (25%) of the Town's share of annual single rate premium from the POS plan. Cash-in-lieu payments will be made on a weekly basis through regular payroll processing. Any cash-in-lieu payments will be taxed in conjunction with an individual's regular gross taxable earnings.

Upon retirement a firefighter may continue his/her membership in the Town's health insurance program, at his/her own expense.

Firefighters shall be given the option to enroll in the Maine State Health Subsidy Program at hire or for up to five (5) years of employment. Terms of enrollment are set by the Program administrators.

The Town shall remit firefighter contributions to the Firefighters and Law Enforcement Officers Health Insurance Program Fund as per the Maine Revised Statute, Title 5, Chapter 13, Sub Chapter 3, SS 286-M.

Section 2: Dental Insurance

The Town agrees to provide a dental insurance plan for the employees covered by this unit. The Town agrees to provide fifty percent (50%) payment for said dental insurance plan. For example, depending upon each employee's marital status, the Town will pay fifty percent (50%) family coverage or fifty percent (50%) employee and spouse coverage or fifty percent (50%) single employee coverage. The employee's share shall be made through payroll deduction.

The Town will provide either Maine Municipal Employees Health Trust Dental Plan A or equivalent.

Section 3: Life Insurance

All full-time employees have the option of enrolling in our group life insurance plan. The Town will pay the basic life insurance premium (equaling 1 x an individual's annual salary) for these employees. Any supplemental life insurance coverage that an employee chooses will be paid by the employee through regular payroll deduction.

The Town shall also provide an additional term life insurance benefit to Firefighters in the amount of \$50,000. The annual premium cost for this benefit will be incurred by the

Town. Unit members will be automatically enrolled at their time of hire. Once enrolled, members will receive direct correspondence from the life insurance policy carrier regarding the designation of a beneficiary for this benefit.

Section 4: Short Term Disability Insurance

The Town currently offers income protection coverage (i.e., short term disability insurance) to all full time employees through the Maine Municipal Employees Health Trust. Employees may choose a coverage level of either 55% or 70% of their salary. Employees shall pay the premium for the selected coverage through a weekly payroll deduction. Employees may opt to not enroll for coverage, but may have to complete additional information and may be denied, if enrolling at a later date.

It shall be the employees' responsibility to complete and submit all claim forms in accordance with the rules and requirements of the insurer and/or plan administrator. Employees may obtain copies of the applicable forms and instructions from the Town's Human Resource Office upon request. All determinations regarding eligibility for benefits will be made by the insurer and/or the plan administrator. Any dispute between an employee and the insurer and/or plan administrator regarding this benefit shall not be the subject of a grievance under this Agreement.

Employees who are eligible to receive Short Term Disability benefits may use sick time pay during the benefit eligibility waiting period. Thereafter, they Employees must use enough sick time to cover all benefits for each weekly payroll

ARTICLE 16 - CLOTHING ALLOWANCE

If any firefighter is required to wear protective clothing or any type of protective device as a condition of employment, such protective clothing or protective device and accessories shall be furnished by the Town to the firefighter. The cost of maintaining the protective clothing, device, and accessories in proper working condition shall be paid by the Town.

The Town shall provide uniforms for the first (1st) year of employment. The uniforms provided will be at the discretion of the Fire Chief.

Beginning July 1, 2017, as long as a firefighter has completed 12 months of employment; firefighters shall receive a clothing allowance of \$450 for the fiscal year.

Beginning July 1, 2018, as long as a firefighter has completed 12 months of employment; firefighters shall receive a clothing allowance of \$500 for the fiscal year.

Firefighters beginning their second (2nd) year of employment prior to the start of the fiscal year, shall receive a clothing allowance in the amount equal to the prorated adjustment for the number of weeks remaining until the start of the fiscal year.

Clothing allowance shall not rollover year to year.

The Policy on quality and type of uniform and protective gear shall remain at its present high standards, complying with all N.F.P.A. and O.S.H.A. standards.

ARTICLE 17 - RETIREMENT

On behalf of unit members, the Town shall contribute a percentage of an individual's gross earnings to either the Maine Public Employees Retirement System (MainePERS, formerly known as the Maine State Retirement System) or to the International City Management Retirement Corporation (ICMA). The system to which contributions are made is dependent on an individual employee's preference and personal choosing.

If an employee chooses to enroll under the ICMA plan, the Town will contribute eight percent (8%) of an individual's gross earnings to their plan. In addition to this employer portion, the employee has the option of contributing to the plan as well (up to the annual percentage limits set forth by the ICMA plan). Participants are fully responsible for any fees assessed by the Plan and are responsible for choosing from among a number of investment options.

If a firefighter chooses to enroll under MainePERS, both the participant's portion and the Town's contributions will be determined and set by MainePERS. Firefighters shall be enrolled in MainePERS Plan 3102C which allows a firefighter to retire after twenty five years of service, with cola and no minimum age. The Town shall allow regular Firefighters the option to purchase military time from MainePERS at no cost to the Town. The Town shall adopt the Survivors Benefit and Retirement Adjustment Allowance provision of MainePERS.

Effective August 1, 2023, If a firefighter chooses to enroll under MainePERS, both the participant's portion and the Town's contributions will be determined and set by MainePERS. Firefighters shall be enrolled in MainePERS Plan 3103C which allows a firefighter to retire after twenty five years of service, with cola and no minimum age. The Town shall allow regular Firefighters the option to purchase military time from MainePERS at no cost to the Town. The Town shall adopt the Survivors Benefit and Retirement Adjustment Allowance provision of MainePERS.

If the Office Manager chooses to enroll under MainePERS, both the participant's portion and the Town's contributions will be determined and set by MainePERS. The Office Manager shall be enrolled in MainePERS Plan 110AC.

Employee contributions for either plan will be withheld through payroll deductions. The Town is not liable for any tax implications to individual plan participants.

Unit members may enroll in either or both plans. However, the Town will only pay into one retirement plan on an individual employee's behalf.

ARTICLE 18 - PAY SCALE

Wage rate negotiated and agreed to by both parties shall become part of this contract and attached to this document as Exhibit # 1.

To encourage professional and academic development, the Town agrees to implement an educational incentive plan as set forth in this section. Any permanent employee who is a member of the bargaining unit shall be entitled to receive additional annual compensation based on the level of educational degree obtained based as follows: Associate's Degree = \$1000/year_for Bachelor's Degree = \$1500/year_ There shall be no annual incentive payout for members who

have only partially completed a degree program. Payments under this Article shall be in addition to the base pay, and shall be made during the first pay period in December of each calendar year.

ARTICLE 19 - EMERGENCY CALL BACK TIME

At the discretion of the Officer in charge, an emergency callback may be implemented. Such emergencies consist of Deskbox, Firefighter Recall, Working Fire or All Hands. As regular Firefighters are encouraged to respond to emergency situations even while off-duty, Firefighters who are called back to duty due to the needs of the Fire Department, shall receive call back pay as follows:

1st Hour of Callback Time: Four (4) hours of pay at 1½ times his/her basic rate of pay (regardless of whether full hour is worked, employee will receive a minimum of four (4) hours pay for this first (1st) hour.

Any call back hours worked beyond the first hour will be paid at 1½ times his/her basic rate of pay (callback hours actually worked beyond hour one, will be paid based on the actual time worked).

Any Firefighter who responds to a second callback within the first hour of the initial callback, will not receive an additional four (4) hours of pay for his/her first hour of time for his/her second return to duty.

Time worked by regular Fire Fighters, off duty, who come back to work to fill in for another Fire Fighter due to sick leave, bereavement or vacation time, shall not be considered callback time.

Emergency Call Back time will not be paid for scheduled work, meetings, trainings, and/or other non-emergency events. A one (1) hour minimum shall be paid for nonemergency events.

ARTICLE 20- HOURS OF WORK

Section 1- Firefighters:

Firefighters covered by this agreement shall work a scheduled work week which averages an approximate forty-two (42) hours per week based upon twenty-four (24) hours on duty and forty-eight(48) hours off duty followed by twenty-four (24) hours on duty and ninety-six (96) hours off duty schedule. The forty-two hour week average is calculated over an eight (8) week period. Should departmental requirements or should a federal or State law be passed affecting the work week, the Town and Local Union agree to meet to discuss a change in the work week during the life of this Agreement.

A work day for on duty fire fighters shall consist of a twenty-four (24) hour day. Fire Fighters who are on duty for a twenty-four hour shift will be compensated for the full twenty-four (24) hour period.

Sleep and meal time will constitute hours of work.

Section 2- Firefighter Overtime Distribution:

Firefighters shall be paid overtime after working an average forty-two (42) hour work week. All hours worked in excess shall be compensated at one and one-half (1½) times his/her regular rate of pay.

No firefighter shall work in excess of seventy-two (72) hours continuously without at least twenty-four (24) hours off duty time except in the event of an emergency affecting the health, safety, and welfare of the Town and its inhabitants.

The procedure for distributing overtime shall be a mutually agreed upon process between Local 2247 and the management team. This agreement shall be found in Appendix O of this document. At no time shall either party change the overtime distribution process unilaterally. The change in process shall only be implemented after a 7 day notification/withdrawal period by either party without cause or explanation. After the 7 day notification/withdrawal period, the overtime distribution process shall be placed in effect on the first day of the next month starting at 0700 hours.

A Firefighter who works a sick day shall be paid for the full time worked.

The parties by mutual agreement may modify this section.

Section 3-Office Manager

The Office Manager will work a 37 hour week. The week will consist of four (4) days at seven and a half $(7 \frac{1}{2})$ hours and one (1) day at seven (7) hours, unless otherwise authorized by the Chief.

Overtime will not be paid until the Office Manager has worked forty (40) hours, according to FLSA guidelines. The Office Manager will have a one (1) hour unpaid lunch break.

Section 4- Compensatory Time

If an employee makes a request to receive compensatory time for overtime hours worked, The Chief shall make the sole determination as to whether to grant compensatory time off or pay the overtime. Compensatory time shall only accrue up to twenty-four (24) hours. Compensatory time must be used by December 15th or be paid out by the last payroll of the calendar year. Use of compensatory time must be used with the permission of the Chief and not create overtime.

ARTICLE 21 - ABSENTEEISM

Employees not expecting to work their regular tour of duty because of emergencies, illness, or other justifiable cause, shall notify the officer in charge at least one (1) hour before scheduled to work, if at all possible.

ARTICLE 22 - VACANCIES AND PROMOTIONS

Eligibility

Eligibility

- To be eligible for promotion to the position of Lieutenant, an employee must have a
 Paramedic license and have served a minimum of two (2) years of continuous, full-time
 service in the Old Orchard Beach Fire Department. Any employee who will become
 eligible for promotion during the period that the list of qualified candidates is valid may
 take the exam. Final eligibility will be determined by the date on which the Fire Chief is
 notified in writing of a vacancy.
- 2. To be eligible for promotion to the position of Captain, an employee must be currently working as a full-time Lieutenant in the Old Orchard Beach Fire Department or have a Paramedic license and have a minimum of ten (10) years continuous service as a full-time firefighter, five (5) years of which must be in the Old Orchard Beach Fire Department. Any employee who will become eligible for promotion during the period that the list of qualified candidates is valid may take the exam. Final eligibility will be determined by the date on which the Fire Chief is notified in writing of a vacancy.

Establishing a "List of Qualified" Candidates

The names, in order of test results of all exam takers for each position, Captain and Lieutenant, shall be posted on the union bulletin board within 30 days of the exam being administered.

The top three eligible scorers on the written exam and oral/assessment for each position Captain and Lieutenant shall be considered "qualified" for promotion. The list of Qualified Candidates will be active for 1 year after posting of results for any future vacancies.

Procedure

When a vacancy in the rank of Lieutenant or Captain occurs, notice of said vacancy shall be posted on the department bulletin board, within thirty (30) days after the Fire Chief is notified in writing that said vacancy exists.

Within 60 days of having notice of said vacancy, the fire chief shall cause a written exam and oral/assessment exam to be administered by fire department Fire Chief, Deputy Chief, and / or Captains and Human Resources.

Only those on the list of qualified candidates will be allowed to participate in the Oral/Assessment Exam.

The Chief shall provide to all potential candidates, a study guide/reading list consistent with the written exam sixty days (60) prior to the exam.

Scoring

The scoring of the promotional process shall be based on a maximum of one hundred (100) points:

Written Exam
Oral/Assessment

30 points 30 points

Box Drill

10 points

Length of Service 10 points Certifications 20 points

Length of Service points will be determined by the date in which the Fire Chief is notified in writing of a vacancy. In calculating the above, length of service and certification points will also be added based upon the following:

4 -5 years	2 points
6 - 8 years	4 points
9 - 11years	6 points
12 - 15 years	8 points
Over 16 years	10 points

Certifications	Points		
Firefighter 2	1	1	
Fire Instructor 1	1	l	
Fire Instructor 2	1	1	
Fire Officer 1			1
Fire Officer 2	1	1	
Fire Officer 3	1	i I	
Fire Officer 4	i	i i	
FTO	1	1	
Incident Safety Officer (ProBo	ard) 1	i İ	
Managing Fire Officer		2	
Hazmat Tech			1
Preceptor/EMS Students	1	l	•
ACLS Instructor	1	ì	
PALS Instructor	1	1	
CPR Instructor	1	1	
IC/EMS	i	i İ	
AVOC/EVOC Instructor	1	i	
Lieutenant	1	i	
Military	1	i	
Associates or Bachelors		2 or 3	based on highest level, noncumulative
	_	•	and an ingress level, noncamulative

Appointment of Promotion

- 1. The Chief shall post the top three scores and confer with the Deputy Chief and / or Captains as to the final selection. The selected candidate shall be one of the top three (3) rated employees.
- 2. Vacant positions shall be filled within 30 days of the completion of the promotional process.

The parties by mutual agreement may modify this article.

ARTICLE 23 - DETAILS TO OTHER TOWN DEPARTMENTS OR UTILITY COMPANIES

Unit members shall not be detailed to other Town Departments or Public Utility Companies, except in the event of an emergency affecting the health, safety, and welfare of the Town and its inhabitants, or by mutual consent.

ARTICLE 24 - OPERATING FIRE FIGHTING APPARATUS

At no time shall unqualified personnel operate any fire apparatus, not including the service truck, unless the service truck is utilized as a Brush unit or in the case of an emergency. The Fire Chief shall determine who is qualified. At all times, this provision may not be used to lay off any full time employees. Except as where otherwise specifically allowed within the contract, the Town agrees to a four (4) full time equivalent person minimum manning at all times. In the event of a vacancy during a shift, regardless of the cause, the first vacancy will not be routinely filled with overtime as long as the minimum staffing level is maintained.

ARTICLE 25 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

Section 1: Grievance and arbitration procedure - Any dispute, which arises between the parties concerning the application, meaning or interpretation of this Agreement, shall be settled in the following manner:

A. The Union, through an authorized steward, shall take up the grievance with the Fire Chief of the Fire Department.

B. If the Union and the Fire Chief have not resolved the grievance within ten (10) calendar days, and the Union wishes to continue the grievance process, the Union shall submit the details of such grievance in writing to the Town Manager. Within ten calendar days thereafter, the Town Manager may meet with the representatives of the Union for the purpose of adjusting or resolving such grievances. The Town Manager shall render his/her written decision within ten (10) calendar days from said meeting.

C. In the event that the decision of the Town Manager rendered pursuant to (b) above is not acceptable to the Union, it may within ten (10) calendar days thereafter request that the matter be submitted to arbitration by notifying the Town in writing.

The arbitration proceedings shall be conducted by an arbitrator to be selected by the Town and the Union within seven (7) calendar days after notice has been given. If the: parties fail to select an arbitrator, they may, by mutual agreement, utilize the services of the Maine Board of Arbitration and Conciliation. If the parties are unable to agree to a single Arbitrator or to utilize the services of the Maine Board of Arbitration and Conciliation, either may request the services of the American Arbitration Association to provide an arbitrator in accordance with the American Arbitration Association rules. The decision of the Arbitrator shall be final and binding on the parties and the Arbitrator shall be requested to issue his/her decision within thirty (30) calendar days after the conclusion of the testimony and argument.

Expenses for the Arbitrator's services and proceedings shall be borne equally by the Town and the Union. However, each party shall be responsible for compensating its own representatives and witnesses. If either party desires a verbatim record of the proceedings, it may cause such a record to be made, provided it pays for that record and makes copies available without charge to the other party and to the Arbitrator.

D. The time limits for processing of grievances may be extended by written consent of the parties.

E. For Step (1) of the grievance procedure, the Fire Chief may act through his/her authorized representative.

F. All grievances shall be commenced not later than fourteen (14) calendar days after the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance, or within fourteen (14) calendar days after the time such event became known to the Union or to the employee or employees concerned, whichever shall be later.

Section 2: Grievance Committee - Employees selected by the Union to act, as Union representatives shall be known as "Stewards". The names of employees selected as stewards and the names of other Union representatives who may represent employees shall be certified in writing to the Town by the Local Union and the individuals so certified shall constitute the Union Grievance Committee. The purpose of the grievance committee will be to adjust pending grievances and to discuss procedures for avoiding future grievances. In addition, the committee may discuss with the Town other issues. which would improve the relationship between the parties.

Section 3: Processing Grievances During Working Hours - The Chief Steward may investigate and process grievances during working hours without loss of pay but in no case shall such time off exceed a total of two (2) hours per week except with the permission of the Fire Chief.

Section 4: Union Steward - Any employee shall have the right to be represented or accompanied by the Union Steward or other Union representative when appearing before the Fire Chief or his/her delegates on any grievance, with regard to any disciplinary action, or on any occasion when the employee has been required to appear.

ARTICLE 26 - UNION BULLETIN BUSINESS

The Town agrees to allow Union officers a leave of absence, without pay, to attend National Regional meetings of the Union, provided:

There is sufficient manpower available to cover operational needs; A one (1) week notice, in advance, is given in writing to the Fire Chief.

The Town further agrees to allow members of the Union negotiation team, who are on duty, to attend negotiating meetings with the Town without loss of pay.

ARTICLE 27 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS AND DEPARTMENTAL RULES

Section 1: The Town retains all rights and authority to manage and direct its employees, except as otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement. The Union acknowledges the right of the Town to make such rules and regulations governing the conduct of its employees as are not specifically inconsistent with the provisions of this Agreement. The Local Union recognizes that the Town has the right to issue rules and regulations governing the selection, promotion, appointment, dismissal, and hiring for the Fire

Department; however, said rules and regulations will be discussed with Union Representative(s) before implementation. This does not; however, make said rules and regulations subject to Union approval, unless the subject matter involves changes to mandatory subject of bargaining. Nothing in this agreement shall be construed to imply that the unit members have given up the statutory right to just cause provision on all issues relating to discipline and discharge issues.

Section 2: When existing rules are changed or new rules are established, providing such rules do not conflict with this Agreement, they shall be sent to all members by electronic email and posted prominently on all bulletin boards for a period of seven (7) consecutive calendar days before becoming effective. The Union reserves the right to negotiate over impacts on the terms and conditions of employment.

Section 3: The employer further agrees to furnish each employee in the bargaining unit with a copy of all existing work rules thirty (30) days after they become effective by electronic email, data diskette or paper. New employees shall be provided with a copy of the rules at the time of hire.

ARTICLE 28- SCHOOLING AND TRAINING

The Town agrees to pay for costs associated with courses and trainings that are required as a condition of maintaining firefighting/emergency medical licenses and/or certifications (as determined under Article 6). The Town shall pay for tuition, books, travel and time spent for classes which fall outside the scope of the regular workday. Employees shall bear the cost of obtaining the initial certification. The Town will pay the cost of recertification only. All required courses and trainings must be pre-approved by the Fire Chief.

Time spent outside of an employee's regularly scheduled workday to attend courses for recertification shall be paid at the individual's overtime rate. Course attendance that falls within a regularly scheduled work shift shall be compensated at the employee's normal base pay. An employee who attends a course during their regularly scheduled shift may be required to return to duty after completion of their training for that day. Employees may be required to return to shift duty at any time, at the discretion of the Fire Chief.

In the event that the employee's course attendance would require replacement on their regular shift, the Chief will determine who is qualified to perform the duties necessary for that shift and schedule the appropriate coverage.

Unit members may request to take additional professional courses or trainings that are not a requirement of recertification. Professional development of this nature shall be granted by the Fire Chief based upon budgetary limitations and whether the training will provide some benefit to the operations of the department. Employees approved for these type of courses may not receive additional pay or coverage for time used.

All scheduled departmental trainings shall be considered mandatory for all fulltime personnel unless an individual is on an authorized leave such as bereavement, sick, vacation, personal, etc. or unless otherwise designated

When possible, a vehicle and fuel shall be provided by the department for travel to trainings or reasonable vehicle travel costs shall be reimbursed.

Bridge Program

To encourage the professional development of the department, the Town agrees to implement an incentive plan as set forth in this section. A firefighter who enters the bridge program as an EMT-B or EMT-A, the Town will pay the cost of a paramedic program. Upon completion of the program, the employee will be committed to maintaining employment with the Town for a minimum of a five (5) year period. If the employee separates before completion of the program, they will be responsible to repay the full amount of the program to the Town. If the employee separates after completing the program but before the five years has been completed, the employee will be responsible to repay a prorated amount to the Town. If an employee does not pass on the first attempt, any additional attempts will not be paid for by the Town.

ARTICLE 29 - GENERAL PROVISIONS

The Town agrees not to discriminate against any employee for his/her activity on behalf, or membership in the Union.

The Union recognizes its responsibility as a bargaining agent and agrees to represent all employees in the bargaining unit without discrimination, interference, restraint or coercion.

The Town and the Union agree that the provisions of this Agreement shall be applied equally to all employees without discrimination with regard to age, sex, marital status. race, color, creed, national origin or political affiliation of employees.

ARTICLE 30 - SAVINGS CLAUSE

If any provision of this Agreement shall be contrary to any laws or a Town Ordinance, such invalidity shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions.

ARTICLE 31 - HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Union recognizes the right of the Town to establish reasonable rules and regulations for the safe, sanitary and efficient conduct of the Town's business and reasonable penalties for the violation of such rules and regulations.

The Town is responsible for meeting safety standards which are considered to be minimum standards required by the occupational Safety and Health Act of the State of Maine. Non-compliance with Act may result in fine and penalty to the Town.

The Town shall provide proper safety devices for all employees engaged in work where

such devices are necessary. Such devices, where provided, must be used as intended.

If a member of the unit deems his/her vehicle or equipment to be unsafe, he/she shall notify his/her superior who, in turn, shall arrange for or conduct an appropriate inspection and shall determine whether the vehicle or equipment is safe for use.

Any employee involved in any accident shall immediately report to his/her immediate. non-unit superior, said accident, when possible, and any physical injury sustained. Said report will be made on a proper form provided by the Town.

ARTICLE 32 - PHYSICAL EXAMINATIONS

Firefighters are expected to have a bi-annual physical examination. As a result of these bi-annual exams, Firefighters shall be responsible for providing a fit for duty statement to the Town. These statements are not to be considered public information and will be maintained in the firefighter's confidential medical file. If a physician determines a firefighter unfit for his/her assigned duties, the Town will work with the employee to achieve his/her suitability to return to duty.

ARTICLE 33 - PHYSICAL FITNESS REQUIREMENT

Section A: Firefighters shall have two (2) opportunities to take the physical fitness examination. The first offering will be in the Spring (April or May) and the second will be in the Fall (September or October). The physical fitness examination standards (Exhibit #2) shall be set with the approval of both the Union and Fire Chief on the validity of the standards. Firefighters shall be considered passed for the purpose of the examination, if the firefighter meets or exceeds the requirements in all categories.

Section B: A failure during the life of this contract shall not be used as just cause for removal of any firefighter or fire officer.

Section C:

The Town shall provide a maximum of twelve hundred dollars (\$1200) fiscally, towards the Fire Department physical fitness program.

Section D: Any firefighter who meets or exceeds every requirement of the physical examination shall receive a bonus of two hundred and fifty dollars (\$250) payable in a separate check on the next pay period for each examination passed in the calendar year. The parties agree to cooperate to develop a comprehensive fitness and wellness program.

ARTICLE 34 - FIRE INSPECTOR POSITION SIDE BAR

It is agreed to by the signing parties that in the event primary fire inspection/license inspection duties remain within the Fire Department after July 1, 2004, the Union shall have right to reopen negotiations to establish a stipend for Fire Department personnel performing these duties

ARTICLE 36- TERM OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall govern the rights of the parties from July 1, 2023until and including June 30, 2026.

IN WITNESS THEREOF - The Town has caused this Agreement to be executed and its corporate seal to be affixed by Larry S. Mead, its Town Manager, as of the day and year first above written. The Union has caused this instrument to be signed by Charles Howarth, its President, there unto duly authorized as of the day and year first above written.

LOCAL UNION 2247 INTERNATIONAL SOCIATION OF FIRE FIGHTERS

TOWN MANAGER OLD ORCHARD BEACH

FIRE CHIEF

		AP	PENDIX B	- CONTRAC	T PERIOD	07/01/20	23-06/30	/2024		
		0-1 YRS	2-3 YRS	4-5 YRS	6-8 YRS	9-12 YRS	13-15 YRS	16-18 YRS	19-22 YRS	23+ YRS
	CTED.				2	4			-	
Firefighter	STEP	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
EMT B	Annual	\$52,484.14	\$54,286.16	\$59,473.77	\$64,829.66	\$65,637.44	\$65,904.06	\$66,376.51	\$66,816.88	\$67,138.0
	Weekly	\$1,009.31	\$1,043.96	\$1,143.73	\$1,246.72	\$1,262.26	\$1,267.39	\$1,276.47	\$1,284.94	\$1,291.1
	Hourly	\$24.03	\$24.86	\$27.23	\$29.68	\$30.05	\$30.18	\$30.39	\$30.59	\$30.74
Firefichter										
Firefighter EMT A	Annual	\$54,883.92	\$56,744.24	\$62,240.48	\$67,665.43	\$68,654.32	\$68,929.24	\$69,325.07	\$69,688.75	\$70,231.9
	Weekly	\$1,055.46	\$1,091.24	\$1,196.93	\$1,301.26	\$1,320.28	\$1,325.56	\$1,333.17	\$1,340.17	\$1,350.6
	Hourly	\$25.13	\$25.98	\$28.50	\$30.98	\$31.44	\$31.56	\$31.74	\$31.91	\$32.16
	,									
Firefighter		_								4
EMT P	Annual	\$58,749.60	\$60,890.97	\$66,789.86	\$72,766.27	\$73,741.41	\$74,107.45	\$74,571.49	\$75,132.17	\$75,591.1
	Weekly	\$1,129.80	\$1,170.98	\$1,284.42	\$1,399.35	\$1,418.10	\$1,425.14	\$1,434.07	\$1,444.85	\$1,453.6
	Hourly	\$26.90	\$27.88	\$30.58	\$33.32	\$33.76	\$33.93	\$34.14	\$34.40	\$34.61
Lieutenant				÷						
EMT P	Annual	\$67,092.48	\$68,686.13	\$73,138.58	\$77,630.49	\$78,285.58	\$78,585.25	\$78,958.32	\$79,329.50	\$79,674.1
	Weekly	\$1,290.24	\$1,320.89	\$1,406.51	\$1,492.89	\$1,505.49	\$1,511.25	\$1,518.43	\$1,525.57	\$1,532.2
	Hourly	\$30.72	\$31.45	\$33.49	\$35.55	\$35.85	\$35.98	\$36.15	\$36.32	\$36.48
			,							
Contain		CONTRACTOR NAME OF THE OWNER, THE		\$TEP	0	1	2	3	4	5
Captain EMT B	Annual				\$68,167.01	\$71,062.99	\$73,051.01	\$74,258.87	\$75,571.88	\$77,424.8
	Weekly	SALES OF THE SALES	Charles Sex	DOMESTIC SERVICE	\$1,310.90	\$1,366.60	\$1,404.83	\$1,428.06	\$1,453.31	\$1,488.9
	Hourly				\$31.21	\$32.54	\$33.45	\$34.00	\$34.60	\$35.45
		1000	100 E 100 S	SERVICE SHAPE						
Captain		RESERVE OF THE PERSON NAMED IN	A							
EMT A	Annual		Part of the same	Section 1	\$69,560.40	\$73,694.71	\$75,878.41	\$77,507.79	\$78,995.68	\$81,421.8
	Weekly				\$1,337.70	\$1,417.21	\$1,459.20	\$1,490.53	\$1,519.15	\$1,565.8
	Hourly	Programme and the		Processor State	\$31.85	\$33.74	\$34.74	\$35.49	\$36.17	\$37.28
Captain		No. of the last	Name and Address of the Owner, where	Telephone Control				1	 	
EMT P	Annual			00 - 6	\$75,522.72	\$79,650.91	\$81,766.40	\$83,170.00	\$84,988.89	\$87,497.0
	Weekly	CHEST SERVICE		No. School Service	\$1,452.36	\$1,531.75	\$1,572.43	\$1,599.42	\$1,634.40	\$1,682.6
	Hourly		10000000	Sand Walls	\$37.44	\$38.34	\$38.81	\$39.12	\$39.51	\$40.06
		0-1 YRS	2-3 YRS	4-5 YRS	6-8 YRS	9-12 YRS	13-15 YRS	16-18 YRS		
	CTEO	_	-	-	3	4		6	+	
Office	STEP	0	1	2	3	- 4	5	0		- the state of the
Manager	Annual	\$49,100.48	\$50,967.02	\$52,833.23	\$54,041.10	\$55,328.98	\$55,934.61	\$58,033.87		
	Weekly	\$944.24	\$980.13	\$1,016.02	\$1,039.25	\$1,064.02	\$1,075.67	\$1,116.04		
	Hourly	\$25.52	\$26.49	\$27.46	\$28.09	\$28.76	\$29.07	\$30.16		
									7	,

APPENDIX B - CONTRACT PERIOD 07/01/2024-06/30/2025

## STEP			0-1 YRS	2-3 YRS	4-5 YRS	6-8 YRS	9-12 YRS	13-15 YRS	16-18 YRS	19-22 YRS	23+ YRS
Firefighter EMT B Weekly S1,049.63 \$1,085.88 \$1,189.41 \$1,296.42 \$1,312.58 \$1,318.26 \$1,327.44 \$1,336.17 \$1,342.74 \$1,345.74 \$1,345.17 \$1,342.74 \$1,345.17 \$1,342.74 \$1,345.17 \$				-				20 20 1110	10 10 1110	25 25 1115	251 (110
Merelly S1,049.63 S1,049.68 S1,149.61 S1,249.61 S1,249	4%	STEP	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
## Hourly \$24.99 \$25.85 \$28.32 \$30.87 \$31.25 \$31.39 \$31.61 \$31.81 \$31.91 \$31.97 \$4% \$4% \$4% \$4% \$4% \$4% \$4% \$4% \$4% \$4%		Annual	\$54,580.78	\$56,466.01	\$61,849.13	\$67,413.96	\$68,254.37	\$68,549.64	\$69,026.63	\$69,480.90	\$69,821.61
## Firefighter EMT A	713 117 117	Weekly	\$1,049.63	\$1,085.88	\$1,189.41	\$1,296.42	\$1,312.58	\$1,318.26	\$1,327.44	\$1,336.17	\$1,342.72
Firefighter Annual \$57,079.28 \$59,009.93 \$64,733.76 \$70,366.73 \$71,411.56 \$71,684.12 \$72,092.97 \$72,479.10 \$73,046.58 \$1,348.1 \$1,244.88 \$1,353.21 \$1,373.30 \$1,378.54 \$1,386.40 \$1,393.83 \$1,404.7 \$1,645.14 \$1,502.59 \$1,1404.7 \$1,645.14 \$27.02 \$29.64 \$32.22 \$32.70 \$32.82 \$33.01 \$33.19 \$33.45 \$45.404.7 \$1,646.17 \$1,646.17 \$1,646.17 \$1,646.17 \$1,646.17 \$1,402.64		Hourly	\$24.99	\$25.85	\$28.32	\$30.87	\$31.25	\$31.39	\$31.61	\$31.81	\$31.97
Weekly S1,097.68 S9,009.93 Sek,733.76 S70,086.73 S71,411.56 S71,684.17 S72,092.97 S72,479.10 S72,046.94 S1,393.83 S1,404.7	-										
Hourly S26.14 S27.02 S29.64 S32.22 S32.70 S32.82 S33.01 S33.19 S33.45	the second second second	Annual	\$57,079.28		\$64,733.76			\$71,684.12	\$72,092.97	\$72,479.10	\$73,046.94
### Annual S61,095,88 S63,325.52 \$69,458.19 \$75,681.72 \$76,681.11 \$77,067.24 \$77,544.23 \$78,134.78 \$78,611.75 \$70,000 \$1,474.99 \$1,217.80 \$1,335.73 \$1,455.42 \$1,474.64 \$1,482.06 \$1,491.24 \$1,502.59 \$1,511.75 \$1,000 \$1,491.24 \$1,502.59 \$1,511.75 \$1,000 \$1,491.24 \$1,502.59 \$1,511.75 \$1,000 \$1,491.24 \$1,502.59 \$1,511.75 \$1,000 \$1,491.24 \$1,502.59 \$1,511.75 \$1,000 \$1,491.24 \$1,502.59 \$1,511.75 \$1,000 \$1,491.24 \$1,502.59 \$1,511.75 \$1,000 \$1,491.24 \$1,502.59 \$1,511.75 \$1,000 \$1,491.24 \$1,502.59 \$1,511.75 \$1,000 \$1,491.24 \$1,502.59 \$1,511.75 \$1,000 \$1,491.24 \$1,502.59 \$1,511.75 \$1,511.7		Weekly	\$1,097.68				\$1,373.30	\$1,378.54	\$1,386.40	\$1,393.83	\$1,404.75
Firefighter Manual S61,099.58 S63,325.52 S69,458.19 S75,681.72 S76,681.11 S77,067.24 S77,544.23 S78,134.78 S78,611.78		Hourly	\$26.14	\$27.02	\$29.64	\$32.22	\$32.70	\$32.82	\$33.01	\$33.19	\$33.45
EMT.P Weekly \$1,174.99 \$1,217.80 \$1,335.73 \$1,455.42 \$1,474.64 \$1,482.06 \$1,491.24 \$1,502.59 \$1,511.74 Hourly \$27.96 \$29.00 \$31.80 \$34.65 \$35.11 \$35.29 \$35.51 \$35.78 \$35.99 \$35.89 \$4%											
Hourly \$27.98 \$29.00 \$31.80 \$34.65 \$35.11 \$35.29 \$35.51 \$35.78 \$35.99 \$35.99 \$35.51 \$35.78 \$35.99 \$35.99 \$35.51 \$35.78 \$35.99 \$35.51 \$35.78 \$35.99 \$35.51 \$35.78 \$35.99 \$35.51 \$35.78 \$35.99 \$35.51 \$35.78 \$35.99 \$35.51 \$35.78 \$35.99 \$35.51 \$35.78 \$35.99 \$35.51 \$35.78 \$35.99 \$35.51 \$35.79 \$3	ASSESSED AND ADDRESS.	Annual									\$78,611.77
4%											\$1,511.76
Lieutenant EMT Annual \$69,776.18 \$71,434.27 \$76,067.85 \$80,746.85 \$81,428.26 \$81,723.53 \$82,109.66 \$82,495.80 \$82,859.25		Hourly	\$27.98	\$29.00	\$31.80	\$34.65	\$35.11	\$35.29	\$35.51	\$35.78	\$35.99
Weekly S1,341.85 S1,373.74 S1,462.84 S1,552.82 S1,565.93 S1,571.61 S1,579.03 S1,586.46 S1,593.4					_						_
Hourly \$31.95 \$32.71 \$34.83 \$36.97 \$37.28 \$37.42 \$37.60 \$37.77 \$37.94 4% STEP 0 1 2 3 4 5 aptain EMT Annual Weekly \$1,363.25 \$1,421.35 \$1,461.10 \$1,485.12 \$1,511.33 \$1,548.4 Hourly \$33.84 \$33.84 \$34.79 \$35.36 \$35.98 \$36.87 4% Captain EMT Annual \$72,342.82 \$76,635.69 \$78,907.05 \$80,610.57 \$82,155.09 \$84,676.36 Weekly \$1,391.21 \$1,473.76 \$1,517.44 \$1,550.20 \$1,579.91 \$1,628.3 Hourly \$33.12 \$35.09 \$36.13 \$36.91 \$37.62 \$38.77 4% Captain EMT Annual \$85,039.72 \$87,083.94 \$88,151.48 \$88,855.60 \$89,741.43 \$90,990 \$1,635.38 \$1,674.69 \$1,695.22 \$1,708.76 \$1,725.80 \$1,749.8 Hourly \$38.94 \$39.87 \$40.36 \$40.68 \$41.09 \$41.66 O-1 YRS 2-3 YRS 4-5 YRS 6-8 YRS 9-12 YRS 13-15 YRS 16-18 YRS Weekly \$982.01 \$1,019.34 \$1,056.66 \$1,080.90 \$1,106.68 \$1,118.61 \$1,160.56	A JOSEPH CONTRACTOR OF THE PARTY OF THE PART	Annual	\$69,776.18	\$71,434.27	\$76,067.85	\$80,746.85		\$81,723.53	\$82,109.66	\$82,495.80	\$82,859.2
Annual STEP 0 1 2 3 4 5 Aptain EMT B Weekly S1,363.25 \$1,421.35 \$1,461.10 \$1,485.12 \$1,511.33 \$1,548.4 Hourly S32.46 \$33.84 \$34.79 \$35.36 \$35.98 \$36.87 Weekly S72,342.82 \$76,635.69 \$78,907.05 \$80,610.57 \$82,155.09 \$84,676.33 Weekly S1,391.21 \$1,473.76 \$1,517.44 \$1,550.20 \$1,579.91 \$1,628.33 Hourly S33.12 \$35.09 \$36.13 \$36.91 \$37.62 \$38.77 Annual S85,039.72 \$87,083.94 \$88,151.48 \$88,855.60 \$89,741.43 \$90,990.19 Weekly S1,635.38 \$1,674.69 \$1,695.22 \$1,708.76 \$1,725.80 \$1,749.8 Hourly S38.94 \$39.87 \$40.36 \$40.68 \$41.09 \$41.66 O-1 YRS 2-3 YRS 4-5 YRS 6-8 YRS 9-12 YRS 13-15 YRS 16-18 YRS Office Manager Annual \$51,064.50 \$53,005.43 \$54,946.36 \$56,206.97 \$57,547.61 \$58,167.91 \$60,348.95 Weekly \$982.01 \$1,019.34 \$1,019.34 \$1,086.66 \$1,080.90 \$1,106.68 \$1,118.61 \$1,160.56		Weekly			\$1,462.84						\$1,593.45
Annual S70,889.15 S73,910.05 S75,976.99 S77,226.24 S78,589.06 S80,519.38		Hourly	\$31.95	\$32.71	\$34.83	\$36.97	\$37.28	\$37.42	\$37.60	\$37.77	\$37.94
September Sept									_	<u> </u>	
Weekly	THE RESERVE OF THE PARTY OF			Control of the Contro	STEP	0	1			4	5
Hourly \$32.46 \$33.84 \$34.79 \$35.36 \$35.98 \$36.87 ### Captain EMT Annual	ADD ACCOUNT OF THE PARTY OF THE	Annual				\$70,889.15	\$73,910.05	\$75,976.99	\$77,226.24	\$78,589.06	\$80,519.71
4% Annual Staptain EMT EMT EMT EMT EMT EMT EMT EMT EMT EMT	ACTIVITIES N	Weekly		100 TESTS (0)	BANK DESIGN	\$1,363.25	\$1,421.35	\$1,461.10	\$1,485.12	\$1,511.33	\$1,548.46
Second Series		Hourly	Carrie	NAME OF STREET		\$32.46	\$33.84	\$34.79	\$35.36	\$35.98	\$36.87
A Annual S72,342.82 \$76,635.69 \$78,307.05 \$80,610.57 \$82,155.09 \$84,676.55 \$1,212.50 \$1,312.11 \$1,473.76 \$1,517.44 \$1,550.20 \$1,579.91 \$1,628.35 \$1,600.57 \$1,500.50 \$1,579.91 \$1,628.35 \$1,600.57 \$1,500.50 \$1,579.91 \$1,628.35 \$1,600.50 \$1,500.50 \$1,500.50 \$1,579.91 \$1,628.35 \$1,600.50 \$1,500.50 \$1,500.50 \$1,500.50 \$1,500.50 \$1,500.50 \$1,500.50 \$1,500.50 \$1,500.50 \$1,500.50 \$1,500.50 \$1,500.50 \$1,500.50 \$1,500.50 \$1,500.50 \$1,500.50 \$1,500.50 \$1,700.50 \$			北海縣縣	学校 以其中的							
Hourly S33.12 \$35.09 \$36.13 \$36.91 \$37.62 \$38.77 4% Captain EMT Annual \$85,039.72 \$87,083.94 \$88,151.48 \$88,855.60 \$89,741.43 \$90,990.00 Weekly S1,635.38 \$1,674.69 \$1,695.22 \$1,708.76 \$1,725.80 \$1,749.80 Hourly S38.94 \$39.87 \$40.36 \$40.68 \$41.09 \$41.66 Office Manager Annual \$51,064.50 \$53,005.43 \$54,946.36 \$56,206.97 \$57,547.61 \$58,167.91 \$60,348.95 Weekly \$982.01 \$1,019.34 \$1,056.66 \$1,080.90 \$1,106.68 \$1,118.61 \$1,160.56	SCHOOL STREET, SALES	Annual				\$72,342.82	\$76,635.69	\$78,907.05	\$80,610.57	\$82,155.09	\$84,676.30
4% STEP O 1 2 3 4 5 6 Coffice Manager Weekly S98.01 \$1,019.34 \$1,056.66 \$1,080.90 \$1,080.90 \$1,068 \$1,118.61 \$1,160.56 \$1,126.56 \$1,080.90 \$1,068 \$1,118.61 \$1,160.56 \$1,126.56 \$1,080.90 \$1,080.90 \$1,106.68 \$1,118.61 \$1,160.56 \$1,126.56 \$1,080.90 \$1,080.90 \$1,106.68 \$1,118.61 \$1,160.56 \$1,160.56 \$1,118.61 \$1,160.56 \$1,160.56 \$1,080.90 \$1,106.68 \$1,118.61 \$1,160.56 \$1,160.5		Weekly		SERVICE STATES	DESCRIPTION OF THE PERSON OF T	\$1,391.21	\$1,473.76	\$1,517.44	\$1,550.20	\$1,579.91	\$1,628.39
Captain EMT P Annual Annual P \$85,039.72 \$87,083.94 \$88,151.48 \$88,855.60 \$89,741.43 \$90,990.00 Weekly \$1,635.38 \$1,674.69 \$1,695.22 \$1,708.76 \$1,725.80 \$1,749.80 Hourly \$38.94 \$38.94 \$39.87 \$40.36 \$40.68 \$41.09 \$41.66 4% STEP 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 Office Manager Annual \$51,064.50 \$53,005.43 \$54,946.36 \$56,206.97 \$57,547.61 \$58,167.91 \$60,348.95 Weekly \$982.01 \$1,019.34 \$1,056.66 \$1,080.90 \$1,106.68 \$1,118.61 \$1,160.56		Hourly	提供等等	6 1000		\$33.12	\$35.09	\$36.13	\$36.91	\$37.62	\$38.77
Weekly \$1,635.38 \$1,674.69 \$1,695.22 \$1,708.76 \$1,725.80 \$1,749.8			THE REAL PROPERTY.	W. K. Carlon							
Hourly \$38.94 \$39.87 \$40.36 \$40.68 \$41.09 \$41.66 0-1 YRS 2-3 YRS 4-5 YRS 6-8 YRS 9-12 YRS 13-15 YRS 16-18 YRS 4% STEP 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 Office Manager Annual \$51,064.50 \$53,005.43 \$54,946.36 \$56,206.97 \$57,547.61 \$58,167.91 \$60,348.95 Weekly \$982.01 \$1,019.34 \$1,056.66 \$1,080.90 \$1,106.68 \$1,118.61 \$1,160.56		Annual	4			\$85,039.72	\$87,083.94	\$88,151.48	\$88,855.60	\$89,741.43	\$90,990 6
## STEP 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 Office Manager Weekly \$982.01 \$1,019.34 \$1,056.66 \$1,080.90 \$1,106.68 \$1,118.61 \$1,160.56 \$1,160.56		Weekly			(表)等公的	\$1,635.38	\$1,674.69	\$1,695.22	\$1,708.76	\$1,725.80	\$1,749.82
4% STEP 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 Office Manager Annual Weekly \$51,064.50 \$53,005.43 \$54,946.36 \$56,206.97 \$57,547.61 \$58,167.91 \$60,348.95 Weekly \$982.01 \$1,019.34 \$1,056.66 \$1,080.90 \$1,106.68 \$1,118.61 \$1,160.56		Hourly	ST. 1855.00			\$38.94	\$39.87	\$40.36	\$40.68	\$41.09	\$41.66
Office Manager Annual \$51,064.50 \$53,005.43 \$54,946.36 \$56,206.97 \$57,547.61 \$58,167.91 \$60,348.95 Weekly \$982.01 \$1,019.34 \$1,056.66 \$1,080.90 \$1,106.68 \$1,118.61 \$1,160.56			0-1 YRS	2-3 YRS	4-5 YRS	6-8 YRS	9-12 YRS	13-15 YRS	16-18 YRS		
Office Manager Annual \$51,064.50 \$53,005.43 \$54,946.36 \$56,206.97 \$57,547.61 \$58,167.91 \$60,348.95 Weekly \$982.01 \$1,019.34 \$1,056.66 \$1,080.90 \$1,106.68 \$1,118.61 \$1,160.56											
Manager Annual \$51,064.50 \$53,005.43 \$54,946.36 \$56,206.97 \$57,547.61 \$58,167.91 \$60,348.95 Weekly \$982.01 \$1,019.34 \$1,056.66 \$1,080.90 \$1,106.68 \$1,118.61 \$1,160.56	4%	STEP	0	1	2	3	4	5	6		
		Annual	\$51,064.50	\$53,005.43	\$54,946.36	\$56,206.97	\$57,547.61	\$58,167.91	\$60,348.95		
Hourly \$26.54 \$27.55 \$28.56 \$29.21 \$29.91 \$30.23 \$31.37		Weekly	\$982.01	\$1,019.34	\$1,056.66	\$1,080.90	\$1,106.68	\$1,118.61	\$1,160.56		
		Hourly	\$26.54	\$27.55	\$28.56	\$29.21	\$29.91	\$30.23	\$31.37		

										I.
			APPEN	DIX B - CONTE	RACT PERIOD	07/01/2025-0	6/30/2026			
		0-1 YRS	2-3 YRS	4-5 YRS	6-8 YRS	9-12 YRS	13-15 YRS	16-18 YRS	19-22 YRS	23+ YRS
40/	CTED	0	4	-			<i>r</i>		_	
4% Firefighter	STEP	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	. 8
EMT B	Annual	\$56,764.01	\$58,724.65	\$64,323.10	\$70,110.52	\$70,984.54	\$71,291.63	\$71,787.70	\$72,260.14	\$72,614.47
	Weekly	\$1,091.62	\$1,129.32	\$1,236.98	\$1,348.28	\$1,365.09	\$1,370.99	\$1,380.53	\$1,389.62	\$1,396.43
	Hourly	\$25.99	\$26.89	\$29.45	\$32.10	\$32.50	\$32.64	\$32.87	\$33.09	\$33.25
4%										
irefighter EMT A	Annual	\$59,362.45	\$61,370.33	\$67,323.11	\$73,181.40	\$74,268.02	\$74,551.49	\$74,976.69	\$75,378.26	\$75,968.82
	Weekly	\$1,141.59	\$1,180.20	\$1,294.68	\$1,407.33	\$1,428.23	\$1,433.68	\$1,441.86	\$1,449.58	\$1,460.94
	Hourly	\$27.18	\$28.10	\$30.83	\$33.51	\$34.01	\$34.14	\$34.33	\$34.51	\$34.78
4%										
Firefighter EMT P	Annual	\$63,543.57	\$65,858.54	\$72,236.52	\$78,708.98	\$79,748.36	\$80,149.93	\$80,646.00	\$81,260.18	\$81,756.24
	Weekly	\$1,221.99	\$1,266.51	\$1,389.16	\$1,513.63	\$1,533.62	\$1,541.34	\$1,550.88	\$1,562.70	\$1,572.24
	Hourly	\$29.10	\$30.16	\$33.08	\$36.04	\$36,51	\$36.70	\$36.93	\$37.21	\$37.43
4%										
leutenant EMT P	Annual	\$72,567.23	\$74,291.64	\$79,110.56	\$83,976.72	\$84,685.39	\$84,992.47	\$85,394.05	\$85,795.63	\$86,173.58
	Weekly	\$1,395.52	\$1,428.69	\$1,521.36	\$1,614.94	\$1,628.57	\$1,634.47	\$1,642.19	\$1,649.92	\$1,657.18
	Hourly	\$33.23	\$34.02	\$36.22	\$38.45	\$38.78	\$38.92	\$39.10	\$39.28	\$39.46
4%				STEP	0	1	2	3	4	5
aptain EMT B	Annual				\$73,724.71	\$76,866.46	\$79,016.07	\$80,315.29	\$81,732.62	\$83,740.50
	Weekly	SHARE.			\$1,417.78	\$1,478.20	\$1,519.54	\$1,544.52	\$1,571.78	\$1,610.39
	Hourly	17 E 2 E 2 E			\$33.76	\$35.20	\$36.18	\$36.77	\$37.42	\$38.34
4%										
aptain EMT A	Annual				\$75,236.53	\$79,701.11	\$82,063.33	\$83,834.99	\$85,441.29	\$88,063.3
	Weekiy	THE PERSON	機能被指揮	States of the	\$1,446.86	\$1,532.71	\$1,578.14	\$1,612.21	\$1,643.10	\$1,693.53
	Hourly	州 科斯特拉西部		BUENNESSE	\$34.45	\$36.49	\$37.57	\$38.39	\$39.12	\$40.32
4%		LOGISHES !	HARRIS SERVICE	新新港市						
aptain EMT P	Annual			3/2/2	\$88,441.31	\$90,567.30	\$91,677.54	\$92,409.83	\$93,331.09	\$94,630.3
	Weekly				\$1,700.79	\$1,741.68	\$1,763.03	\$1,777.11	\$1,794.83	\$1,819.81
	Hourly	UTSETNED			\$40.50	\$41.47	\$41.98	\$42.31	\$42.73	\$43.33
- (0-1 YRS	2-3 YRS	4-5 YRS	6-8 YRS	9-12 YRS	13-15 YRS	16-18 YRS		
										1
	STEP	0	1	2	3	4	5	6		1
Office Manager	Annual	\$53,107.08	\$55,125.65	\$57,144.22	\$58,455.25	\$59,849.51	\$60,494.62	\$62,762.91		,
	Weekly	\$1,021.29	\$1,060.11	\$1,098.93	\$1,124.14	\$1,150.95	\$1,163.36	\$1,206.98		
	Hourly	\$27.60	\$28.65	\$29.70	\$30.38	\$31.11	\$31.44	\$32.62		

APPENDIX D-OVERTIME DISTRIBUTION

Scheduled Overtime:

Definition: Overtime that is filled in advance (24 hours or greater).

- Shift(s) will be paged out on Monday mornings (Before 11AM if calls allow) via Aladtec. The person filling overtime will assign shifts based off the overtime list after 3PM giving the crew members time to sign up for said shift(s).
- No phone calls are required for Scheduled Overtime fillings.
- Shifts will be filled in 12-hour blocks, unless overtime is less than a 12-hour shift, in which the shift will be filled off the "Short Time" Over time list in same fashion.
- If you get denied for the shift(s) you have signed up for, you **do not** move on the overtime list.
- If you are approved for a shift, you have signed up for **you move** to the bottom of list at time it is filled.

Emergency Overtime:

<u>Definition:</u> Overtime that is filled <u>less than 13 hours</u> but <u>greater than 4 hours.</u>
<u>Example:</u> Crew member calls out night before assigned shift; crew member calls in morning to cancel night shift.

- Shift will be paged out on Aladtec to notify crew members of the vacancy.
- Person filling overtime will start at top of overtime list and call crew member and leave voice message stating the shift available, and what time they are calling.
- A 5-minute wait period after leaving voice message is required before calling next crew member.
- Person filling overtime should pay attention to Aladtec when filling, if a crew

member signs up on Aladtec and is next to call, crew member who signed up will be assigned the shift, and a phone call will be made to notify the crew member o' their assignment.



- If you answer the phone and refuse shift or sign up on Aladtec and are denied for the shift, you **do not** move on the overtime list.
- If you are approved on Aladtec, or answer the phone and accept shift, **you move** to bottom of overtime list at time of filling.

Immediate Overtime:

Definition: Overtime that is filled less than 4 hours.

Example: Call out in morning before shift, Crew member goes home sick during shift.

- Shift will be paged out on Aladtec to notify crew members of vacancy.
- Person filling overtime will start at top of overtime list and call crew member and leave voice message stating the shift available, and what time they are calling.
- No wait period is required between leaving voicemail and calling next crew member.
- Refer to Short-Time Overtime category for specifics on when to use short time list vs traditional list when filling **highlighted in yellow**.
- Person filling overtime should pay attention to Aladtec when filling, if a crew member signs up on Aladtec and is next to call, approve them on Aladtec, and call them to notify them of their approval.
- If you answer the phone and refuse shift or sign up on Aladtec and are denied for the shift, you **do not** move on the overtime list.
- If you are approved on Aladtec, or answer the phone and accept shift, **you move** to bottom of overtime list at time of filling.

Short-Time Overtime:

Definition: Overtime that is less than 12 hours.

<u>Example:</u> Someone takes personal time for a 4-hour appointment, Crew member goes home sick.

- If Short-Time Overtime is prescheduled it will be filled following the same principles as "Scheduled Overtime," But person filling overtime will use the "Short Time Overtime List."
- If Short-Time Overtime falls under the "Emergency Overtime" criteria, it will be filled with the same principles as Emergency Overtime, but person filling overtime will use the "Short Time Overtime List."
- If Short-Time Overtime falls under the "Immediate Overtime" criteria it will be filled using the same principles as Immediate Overtime, but the person filling overtime will use the "Short Time Overtime List."
- If a crew member goes home sick during shift, and vacancy is 4 hours or more till next landmark, (0700 or 1900) the over time will be filled off the Short-Time Overtime list till next landmark, then filled off the Traditional overtime list. If the vacancy is less than 4 hours till next landmark (0700 or 1900), Remaining crew members shift can be offered as a whole off of the Traditional overtime list (I.E 13,14,15-hour Overtime shift).

Cancelled Overtime:

<u>Definition</u>: When Overtime is taken back from crew members by management.

Example: Crew member on extended sick leave returns sooner than anticipated,

Vacation plans canceled.

In the event crew members overtime is "taken back," The crew members will move to the top of the list in the order the over time was filled for shifts being taken back. *Example:* If on Tuesday, Crew Member 1 had 0700-1900 and Crew Member 2 had 1900-0700, and the shift was taken back by management, Crew Member 1 would be placed in the #1 spot on the overtime list and Crew Member 2 would be placed in the #2 spot on overtime list. In the same week if that Thursday was also taken back, and Crew member 3 was working 0700-1900 and Crew Member 4 was working 1900-0700, Crew Member 3 would move to the #3 spot on the overtime list and Crew Member 4 would move to the #4 spot on the overtime list.

Vacation Leave and Overtime:

- Vacation time starts at 0700 of your last completed shift and continues until you return to your first scheduled shift after your vacation.
 Example: If your schedule has you working Tuesday the 9th, Friday the 12th, then Wednesday the 17th and you took a vacation day on Friday, your vacation leave starts Wednesday morning the 10th at 0700 and continues till Wednesday the 17th at 0700.
- While on vacation leave from department you are still eligible to receive over time as long as it is not on your own shift. (I.E you cannot create overtime using vacation time then fill your own spot.)
- While on vacation you cannot be forced.

Officer Overtime Exception:

Definition: There must be an officer, Whether Lieutenant or Captain on each shift.

- In the event there is overtime available and there is no Officer currently on the schedule for that day/night, the overtime must go to an officer.
- The traditional overtime list will be used, and only officers will be eligible for the shift(s).
- When the officer is assigned to the shift, they will move to the bottom of the list at the time it is filled.

Sick Leave and Overtime:

 If you are out on a doctor's note, you are not eligible for overtime until approved by the chief.

Forced Overtime:

<u>Definition:</u> A "Force" Over-time list will be created and used when the rotating over-time list is exhausted. The top eligible person shall be the "Force". The list will be by reverse seniority, Junior Person first, and one will remain at the top of the list until "Forced" to work.

Employees working a forced overtime shift will not lose their spot in the regular overtime rotation.

When the force happens at shift change, the OIC will force one member for the day shift and another member for the night shift from the off going shift. The on-coming OIC shall be obligated to attempt to fill the night shift with voluntary overtime. If the Night shift is filled with voluntary overtime, the member forced in the morning will be notified and removed from the forced overtime list. If not voluntarily filled, the member forced in the morning will be expected to cover the night shift.

You are Ineligible to be forced IF:

- You are on personal leave
- You are on vacation, which begins at 0700 of your last shift worked prior to vacation day.
- You are on Sick, FMLA, or form of medical or disability leave.
- You have worked 72 consistent hours for Old Orchard Beach Fire Department
- While an individual is on a "swap," the firefighter not at station cannot be forced.